
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Family and People Services Policy and Scrutiny Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Monday 1st April, 2019 

   

Time: 
 

 7.00 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.01 & 18.02, 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Jonathan Glanz (Chairman) 
Margot Bright 
Nafsika Butler-Thalassis 
Maggie Carman 

 

Peter Freeman 
Patricia McAllister 
Emily Payne 
Selina Short 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception.  If you have a disability and require 
any special assistance please contact the Committee Officer 
(details listed below) in advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Tristan Fieldsend, Senior Committee and 
Governance Officer. 
 
Tel: 020 7641 2341; Email: tfieldsend@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Committee and Governance Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To note any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in 
matters on this agenda, in addition to the standing declarations 
previously made. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2019. 
 

 

4.   CABINET MEMBER UPDATE (To Follow) 

 To receive an update on current and forthcoming issues within 
the portfolio of the Cabinet Member for Family Services and 
Public Health. 
 

 

5.   SEXUAL HEALTH IN WESTMINSTER (Pages 9 - 24) 

 To receive an update on sexual health within Westminster 
including emerging trends and services provided. 
 

 

6.   2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKER (Pages 25 - 30) 

7.   REPORTS OF ANY URGENCY SAFEGUARDING ISSUES  

 Verbal Update (if any). 
 

 

8.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
 
Stuart Love 
Chief Executive 
22 March 2018 
 



        
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 

MINUTES 

 
 

Family and People Services Policy & Scrutiny Committee 
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Family and People Services Policy & Scrutiny Committee 
held on Monday 4 February 2018 in Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London WC2 5HR 
 

Members Present: Councillors Jonathan Glanz (Chairman), Margot Bright, Nafsika 
Butler-Thalassis, Maggie Carman, Peter Freeman, Patricia McAllister, Emily Payne and 
Selina Short  
 

Also present: Councillor Heather Acton. 
 

 
 

1. MEMBERSHIP 
 
1.1 The Chairman welcomed Councillor Margot Bright as a new member of the 

Committee who had replaced Councillor Lorraine Dean who was now the Deputy 
Cabinet Member for Family Services and Public Health. 

 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1  There were no declarations of interest.  
 

 

3. MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED:  
 

3.1 That the Minutes of the Family and People Services Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 3 December 2018 be approved, subject to paragraph 4.2 being 
amended to read “…Learning Disabilities Presentation Launch..”. 

 
 
4. CABINET MEMBER UPDATE 
 
4.1 Councillor Heather Acton (Cabinet Member for Family Services and Public Health), 

provided a briefing on key issues within her portfolio. The Committee also heard 
from Senel Arkut (Head of Health Partnerships and Development), Melissa 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Caslake (Bi-Borough Executive Director of Childrens Services), Sarah Newman 
(Director of Family Services), Annabel Saunders (Assistant Director for 
Commissioning and Innovation) and James Benson (Central London Community 
Healthcare NHS Trust). 

 
4.2 Councillor Acton provided an update on the following additional items of interest: 
 

 Shisha – She had recently attended a meeting convened by the MP for 
Birmingham Ladywood to explore the potential to incorporate the smoking of 
shisha into the Licensing Act 2003. It was proposed to invite all local authorities 
who had attended this meeting to the next Westminster Shisha assembly to 
raise awareness of the dangers of smoking shisha.  

 

 Dementia and Mental Health – The Cabinet was due to receive a training 
session on dementia which would also be open to all members of the Council. 
If members were unable to attend however a further session would be made 
available. It was also currently Childrens Mental Health Week and the Director 
of Public Health would shortly be publishing an annual report titled ‘The Health 
and Wellbeing of Young People in Kensington & Chelsea and Westminster’. 
This would be circulated to the Committee electronically. 

 

 Speech and Language Therapy – Negotiations were still ongoing with the 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) regarding the provision of Early Years 
Speech and Language Therapy with a particular focus on providing children 
with more specialist needs assistance at an earlier stage. 

 
4.3 Funding - The Committee was interested to learn what implications recent 

reductions in funding would have for the Dementia Strategy and the Speech and 
Language Therapy Sessions. It was noted that positive negotiations for both areas 
were ongoing with a holistic approach being taken to ensure there was adequate 
cover. Significant work had been undertaken with the CCG to design future 
specifications for the services with a more evidence-based approach being utilised 
to target offers of support. As part of this work, the interface between the early 
years’ service and the school age service was also being assessed in order to 
improve school transitions for children and young people. 

 
4.4 Flu Vaccine - Concern was expressed that levels of uptake for the flu vaccine was 

slightly down on last year. It was confirmed that there was ongoing work with 
schools to promote uptake with five of the eleven schools who had not fixed an 
appointment now having signed up to the programme. Public Health England was 
also working closely with local GPs to disseminate information. The Health and 
Wellbeing Board was due to receive a report in March 2019 that would cover 
barriers to uptake of immunisations and childhood vaccinations and this could be 
circulated to the Committee. 

 

Page 4



4.5 Serious Youth Violence – The Committee requested an update on the approach 
taken to tackle youth violence. The Committee was interested to learn that a public 
health approach had been adopted with an emphasis on empowering communities 
to help reduce youth violence. No extra funding had been made available for the 
initiative; however the Serious Youth Violence Officer Task Group met regularly 
and placed a greater emphasis on collaborative working across Public Health, 
Council departments, the police and the voluntary and community sectors to adapt 
to the changing nature of violence. 

 
4.6 The Committee also discussed Nursing Homes, Rough Sleepers and the Better 

Care Fund. 
 
5. CHILD OBESITY IN WESTMINSTER  
 
5.1 Sarah Crouch (Public Health), Gaynor Driscoll (Head of Public Health 

Commissioning) and Dr Alison Treadstone (Chief Nutritionist at Public Health 
England) introduced the report, which provided an update on childhood obesity in 
Westminster. 

 
5.2 In response to questions the Committee was informed that the height and weight 

of schoolchildren in Westminster was measured annually. This data revealed that 
there had been a significant decline in rates of obesity amongst reception age 
children in Westminster since 2016/17. This was a positive outcome of local 
efforts to prevent obesity across maternity and early years services, however 
these trends masked a widening inequality between children of the most and 
least deprived wards.  

 
5.3 Further information on the work undertaken in Westminster in response to the 

issue of obesity was requested. The Committee noted that Westminster’s Public 
Health Team had developed a new programme entitled Tackling Childhood 
Obesity Together, which aimed to halt and reverse the rising trend in childhood 
obesity across Westminster and Kensington and Chelsea. As part of the whole 
systems approach taken in Westminster, opportunities were identified within the 
Council and with partners to make positive changes to the wider environment 
that contributed to reducing childhood obesity. The Committee discussed in detail 
the following areas of opportunity that had been identified: 

 

 Water Fountains – Members were pleased to note that Westminster’s leisure 
contractor had installed water fountains in entrance foyers that were 
accessible to the public and had banned price promotions on sugary drinks. 
Community Services was also improving access by installing water fountains 
in all WCC libraries. The Committee was also particularly keen to support the 
promotion of water fountains in schools to reduce consumption of sugary 
drinks and help combat obesity and tooth decay. The Committee agreed that 
a letter be sent to the Cabinet Member for Family Services and Public Health 
requesting that the installation and use of water fountains across 

Page 5



Westminster as a way of helping tackle childhood obesity, as well as realising 
other benefits, be promoted. 

 

 Fast Food Outlets – 58 food businesses had achieved the Healthier Catering 
Commitment award, a joint initiative led by Environmental Health, which 
made it easier for residents to make healthier food choices. Work had also 
been undertaken with secondary schools to identify fast food outlets most 
used by schoolchildren. The Committee commended the work carried out to 
date but following a discussion requested that a letter be sent to the Cabinet 
for Place Shaping and Planning requesting that investigations be undertaken 
into the possibility of preventing new fast food outlets from opening within a 
reasonable distance of schools. 

 

 Physical Activity – The Committee noted the introduction of various physical 
activity initiatives to help combat obesity. These included the Council 
supporting schools to implement the Daily Mile initiative, of which 
approximately 50% of primary schools in Westminster were now actively 
participating in. Also, the implementation of a Junior Parkrun at Paddington 
Recreation Grounds was welcomed. 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

1) That the Committee write to the Cabinet Member for Family Services and 
Public Health to urge that the installation and use of water fountains across 
Westminster be promoted as a way of helping tackle childhood obesity, as 
well as realising other benefits; and 

 
2) That the Committee write to the Cabinet Member for Place Shaping and 

Planning to investigate the possibility of preventing new fast food outlets 
opening within a reasonable distance of schools. 

 
6. LOCAL CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING BOARD 
 
6.1 Emma Biskupski (London Safeguarding Children Board Business Manager) 

provided the Committee with an overview of the draft Local Safeguarding 
Children Board Annual Report 2017/18. The report detailed work undertaken 
against the key priorities of reducing the harm of domestic abuse and coercive 
control, tackling peer on peer abuse and hearing the voice of children and young 
people. The report also provided the Committee with an overview of the multi-
agency training provided to the children’s workforce across Hammersmith & 
Fulham, Kensington & Chelsea and Westminster. 

 
6.2 The Committee provided feedback on the draft report requesting alterations to 

the formatting and layout to ensure its findings were as clear as possible. 
Discussions also took place on the training provided to staff on interview 
techniques when dealing with children, the positive work undertaken with budget 

Page 6



hotels to combat drugs and prostitution and work carried out with the case 
reviews. To aid readers it was also suggested that the report contain a glossary 
of terms. 

 
6.3 The Committee thanked Emma Biskupski for introducing the draft report and 

looked forward to receiving the finalised report shortly following the feedback 
provided.  

 
7. ANNUAL LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN ABD CARE LEAVERS REPORT 

2017/18 
 
7.1 Nicky Crouch (Head of Looked After Children and Specialist Services) introduced 

the report which provided an overview of the Local Authority’s activity to support 
looked after children and care leavers and the outcomes achieved. 

 
7.2 The Committee was interested to note that in 2017/18, a total of 104 

unaccompanied minors were located in Westminster and 35 had been dispersed 
through the Pan London agreement. As of 31 March 2018 Westminster were 
looking after 69 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children and supporting a 
further 68 as care leavers. Trend analysis indicated that numbers of looked after 
children from Westminster’s resident population were reducing whereas the 
numbers of unaccompanied minors being located in Westminster were 
increasing. This had the effect of pushing up the total numbers along with 
resulting in implications not only financially but also on the capacity and capability 
of the workforce to manage increasing demand. 

 
7.3 In response to questions from the Committee, it was explained that most 

unaccompanied minors arrived in Westminster due to the physical location of 
certain transport hubs, in particular Victoria Coach Station. These minors would 
then usually be picked up by the Police or present themselves to the offices of 
the local authority where they would be placed under care. They were generally 
between the ages of 14 to 17 and where appropriate age assessments would be 
undertaken. Details of how age assessments were carried out was provided. 

 
7.4 The Committee held a detailed discussion on the topic, which included 

information on the implementation of the Children and Social Work Act 2017. It 
was noted that local authorities had a duty and responsibility to those young 
people who leave care after the age of 18 years and up to the age of 25. At the 
end of March 2018, 58% of care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21 years old were in 
education, employment and training. Whilst this was positive, further progress 
was required and remained a key area for improvement. Work continued to 
develop partnerships with Council colleagues and external businesses to create 
a wider range of ambitious and rewarding apprenticeships and employment 
opportunities. 

 

Page 7



7.5 The Committee expressed its thanks to the team for all its hard work and efforts 
in supporting looked after children and care leavers and congratulated it for its 
accomplishments under difficult circumstances. 

 
8. 2018/19 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKER 
 
8.1 Aaron Hardy (Policy and Scrutiny Manager) presented the Committee’s Work 

Programme and Action Tracker. 
 
8.2 The Committee agreed that the next meeting would focus on issues around 

sexual health. The Chairman advised that a site visit to the sexual health service 
at Dean Street would be organised and encouraged members to attend. 
Following a suggestion, the possibility of providing an update on child sexual 
exploitation at the next meeting would also be investigated.  

 
 RESOLVED: 

 
1) That the Work Programme be noted; 

 
2) That the Action Tracker be noted; and 

 
3) That the Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust’s proposal for oesophago-

gastric cancer surgery be noted. 
 
9. REPORTS OF ANY URGENT SAFEGUARDING ISSUES 
 
9.1 The Chairman advised there was nothing to report. 
 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 8:54pm.   

 
 

 

 
CHAIRMAN: _________________            DATE: _____________________ 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Family and People 
Services Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date: 
 

Monday 1st April 2019 

Classification: 
 

General Release  
 

Title: 
 

Sexual Health in Westminster 

Report of: 
 

Bernie Flaherty – Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care and Health 
 

Cabinet Member Portfolio 
 

Cllr Heather Acton – Cabinet Member for family 
Services and Public Health 
 

Wards Involved: 
 

All  
 

Report Author and  
Contact Details: 
 

Helen Byrne, Gaynor Driscoll 
hbyrne@westminster.gov.uk 
Gaynor.Driscoll@rbkc.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1  In 2013, new commissioning arrangements for sexual, reproductive health and HIV     
were introduced as part of the implementation of the Health and Social Care Act 

2012. The commissioning of sexual health services is fragmented with three 
organisations responsible for commissioning different elements of local sexual 
health services: local authorities, NHS England and Clinical Commissioning 
Groups. A glossary of terms can be found at the end of the report. The majority of 
services are commissioned by local authorities. These are summarised in the table 
below:  

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

mailto:hbyrne@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:Gaynor.Driscoll@rbkc.gov.uk


 

 
 
 

Table 1 – commissioning organisations for sexual health services  
 

Local Authorities  Clinical Commissioning 
Groups  

NHS  

Contraception  Abortion services  HIV treatment and care  
 

Sexually Transmitted 
Infections (STI) testing and 
treatment  

Female sterilisation  Testing and treatment of 
STIs in primary care  
 

Sexual aspects of 
psychosexual counselling  

Vasectomies  Sexual health in secure 
and detained settings  
 

Sexual health specialist 
services  

Non-sexual aspects of 
psychosexual services  

Sexual assault referral 
centres 
 

HIV social care  Contraception for 
gynaecological purposes  

Cervical screening  

Wider support for teenage 
parents  

HIV testing for specified 
services  

HPV immunisation 
programme  
 

  NHS infectious disease in 
pregnancy screening  
 

 

 

1.2     Elements of sexual health are mandated these include screening for Sexually 
Transmitted Infections (STIs), treatment for STIs excluding HIV treatment and 
contraception. The cost of these sexual health services is funded through the 
ringfenced public health grant.  

1.3  Sexual health remains a priority for local authorities and Public Health England 
(PHE). The ambition is to reduce the acquisition and transmission of STIs and 
reduce unplanned pregnancies and repeat abortions.  

1.4 Within Westminster City Council (WCC) there are two clinics that deliver sexual 
and reproductive health services also referred to as Genitourinary Medicine 

(GUM) clinics. The clinic in Soho is the largest clinic for activity and diagnosis in 
the UK, it is internationally renowned and considered best practice for other 
countries to develop services and tackle STIs.  

1.5 The second sexual health clinic is based within St Marys hospital known as the 
Jefferiss wing, the clinic is well established as one of the first clinics in London 
to provide treatment and wards for people living with AIDS. The clinic was the 
first to develop a specialist service targeting sex workers and dealing with their 
holistic needs.   

1.6 The number of attendances at the clinics are detailed in appendix 1, the overall 
picture of attendances has reduced from 2017/18 – 2018/19, however it should 
be noted that those who do attend clinic are presenting with more complex 

Page 10



 

 
 
 

needs. For WCC residents they make up 27% of attendances at Dean Street 
and 38% of attendances at Jefferiss Wing  

1.7 The ongoing challenge for WCC is to balance cost pressures against rising 
demand for services including the introduction of Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis 
(PrEP), ongoing chemsex, increasing STI rates and the increasing cost of Long 
Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC).  Our services are particularly 
challenged with the high numbers of people attending our Soho sites in terms of 
managing demand in the context of an open access service. To manage this, we 
have action plans and demand management strategies in place to divert people to 
the online offer. This requires significant culture change within services in how 
people access services and remains an issue for London as a whole.  

 
1.8 The additional cost pressures of PrEP across London are currently being discussed 

by the London sexual health programme. It is proposed that we mitigate this 
pressure through the additional screening required being diverted to the online 
offer. This has yet to be formalised and negotiations are underway, a verbal update 
will be presented at the meeting.    

 

2. Key Matters for the Committee’s Consideration 

2.1 The committee are asked to consider the content of the report and prepare 
questions to put to providers who will be in attendance.  

Page 11



 

 
 
 

3. Background 

 National Picture  

3.1 The access to sexual and reproductive health across England and Westminster 
has changed since 2013. Testing rates continue to rise and therefore an 
increase in the diagnosis rate for some STIs has also increased.  The graph 
below shows the trends from 2013-2018 in England.  

Graph 1 Diagnoses of the main STIs, 2013 - 2018, England 

 

3.2 Chlamydia often has no symptoms and can lead to range of longer term 
complications such as infertility. In order to detect and treat chlamydia, PHE 
recommends repeat testing in the 15-24-year-old population. The repeat testing 
following a positive result contribute to the increasing diagnoses of chlamydia 
in England, WCC is aligned with the national trend in detecting and treating 
chlamydia.   

3.3 A key priority for Public Health England is to reduce gonorrhoea transmission 
and ensuring treatment-resistant strains of gonorrhoea do not persist and 
spread, this will be achieved by prompt diagnosis and treatment. In addition, 
there is an increase in syphilis diagnosis across London. The clinics within 
Westminster diagnose the majority of cases within London. PHE will address 
this with a national action plan that will be published in the Spring. The graphs 
below compare the diagnosis rates of England and WCC for gonorrhoea and 
syphilis. 

 

 

 

 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

Chlamydial infection Gonorrhoea

Herpes - anogenital herpes (1st episode) HIV - new diagnosis

Syphilis - primary, secondary and early latent Warts - anogenital warts (1st episode)

 

Page 12



 

 
 
 

 

Graph 2 diagnosis rates of gonnorhea     diagnosis rates of syplilis 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4 Recommendations from PHE include the joint work of drug and alcohol services 
to address the specific needs of Men who have Sex with Men (MSM) and 
Chemsex. The joint working should include an integrated approach to care, 
Hepatitis C testing and treatment and Hepatitis B vaccination. How we address 
this locally is covered in section 6. 

4 Sub regional picture  

4.1 Westminster are the lead contractor for the commissioning of sexual and 
reproductive health services in Westminster, Kensington and Chelsea and 
Hammersmith and Fulham. All three boroughs form part of the London sexual 
health programme.  

4.2 In order to transform services within the sub region the sexual and reproductive   
health system  underwent major changes in order to make services more 
sustainable and cost effective. Following the transfer of contracts from the NHS 
to Local Authorities in 2013 a review of sexual health services was conducted 
and included a financial impact assessment to understand affordability limits.   

4.3 The procurement of the sexual and reproductive health services was 
progressed as part of a London sexual health programme that brought about 
savings by adopting a new Integrated Sexual Health Tariff that supports greater 
efficiencies.  This pricing system is based on an individual specified clinical 
intervention and clinical need. 

 
4.4 The new London wide sexual and reproductive health system is designed to 

divert low and medium risk cases from acute services to local community 
services or online. This includes embedding effective clinical pathways and 

Page 13



 

 
 
 

demand management strategies to shift the focus on services working with 
groups that are the most at risk of poor sexual health.  

 
4.5 WCC currently commission several services to support the sexual health vision 

of reducing the acquisition and transmission STIs, reducing the late diagnosis 
of HIV, reducing unplanned pregnancies and increasing the awareness of 
emotional wellbeing and healthy relationships in young people. 

 

5 Tackling HIV  

Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis PrEP  

5.1 Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis also known as PrEP is a medication that can help 
prevent people from developing HIV if they have been exposed to HIV. 
Following challenges in 2018 from the National Aids Trust the High Court ruled 
the NHS has a responsibility for providing PrEP medication. However, this has 
not been implemented fully across England but is operating as a trial, which 
started in 2019 and is due to complete in 2022.  

5.2 In order for patients to access the trial they must adhere to the protocol, which 
includes screening of STIs every three months at GUM clinics to be prescribed 
the PrEP medication. The cost of the PrEP medication is funded by NHS, the 
cost of STI screening is funded by the local authority. The local authorities are 
not privy to data or the process of the trial but with the expectation to ensure the 
cost of screening is covered. This is an additional cost pressure to already tight 
financial constraints. However, PrEP is reducing the transmission of HIV and 
ensures that patients on the trial have access to the appropriate support.  

5.3 To fully evaluate the trial the national oversight board have proposed doubling 
the existing number of places.  For London clinics, this represents an increase 
in MSM places from 7,083 to 14,166; and for women and other risk groups, an 
increase from 526 to 1,052; a new total of 15,218 trial places at London clinics. 
Translating this to Westminster residents and MSM only the current PrEP 
uptake on the impact trial is 356 and under proposal to increase the total will be 
712. The clinics that residents attend are  

 Burrell street – based in Southwark  

 Dean street – local clinic  

 Jefferies wing – local clinic  

 John hunter – based in Kensington and Chelsea 

 Mortimer market – based in Camden  

 

 

Page 14



 

 
 
 

PRIME at Dean Street   

5.4 PRIME is part of Dean Street’s ‘Plan ZERO’ project to reduce HIV in the MSM 
cohort. The clinic identified several warning signs that indicated a patient had a 
10% chance of HIV acquisition. Dean Street is key stakeholder into reducing 
HIV amongst MSM. Dean street diagnoses over half of the Capital’s STI’s in this 
group. 

 
5.5 PHE evaluated PRIME and showed that users risk for HIV dropped from 10% 

to less than 1%. Between 2016 and 2018, the number of new cases of HIV 
dropped by 81%. This accounted for a significant part of the 40% reduction 
across London. 

 
5.6 The graph below shows the reduction of HIV in London, the blue line is the 

number of HIV tests, the red line is the number of new HIV diagnoses.  

Graph 3 PRIME impact on HIV diagnosis  

 

5.7 However the PRIME programme has identified new emerging trends in young 
MSM, who are presenting with high risk behaviours and a higher chance of 
acquiring HIV.  

 

6. Local picture – responding to the need of residents  

6.1 In order to address the transmission of STIs and HIV WCC needs to support a 
sustained response to support early detection, successful treatment of STIs. 
This will be achieved by partner notification sexual health promotion of safer 
sexual behaviour and the long-term health implications. This approach is also 
supported by PHE. 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Ja
n

-1
5

M
ar

-1
5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

Se
p

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

Ja
n

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

Se
p

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

Ja
n

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
l-

1
7

Se
p

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

Ja
n

-1
8

M
ar

-1
8

H
IV

 t
es

ts
/ 

m
o

n
th

 

H
IV

+ 
d

ia
gn

o
se

s/
m

o
n

th

Month

Page 15



 

 
 
 

6.2 The graph below compares STI diagnosis for WCC residents from 2013-2018. 
WCC is aligned with the national picture of an increase in gonorrhoea and 
chlamydia, further information on the breakdown of STI diagnosis can be found 
in appendix 2. 

Graph 4 Diagnoses of the main STIs, 2013 - 2018, Westminster 

 

 

6.3 Over the last 12 months PHE have been working with local commissioners on 
the ongoing increase of syphilis diagnosis across London, although locally our 
numbers are relatively low. Our local services diagnose majority of syphilis 
cases. Therefore, we have developed an action plan to reduce the infection rate 
of syphilis. 

The agreed action plan for syphilis includes:  

Testing and treatment 

• Increase number, frequency, subsequent treatment and contact 
trace of known sexual contacts  

• Follow guidance around testing and frequency of testing  

• Develop an appropriate community engagement strategy 

• Identify opportunities to strengthen existing resources 

Surveillance and reporting 

• Consider indicators for outbreak monitoring 

• Develop mechanisms to facilitate routine access to laboratory 
testing data 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

Chlamydial infection Gonorrhoea

Herpes - anogenital herpes (1st episode) HIV - new diagnosis

Syphilis - primary, secondary and early latent Warts - anogenital warts (1st episode)

Page 16



 

 
 
 

Antenatal care 

• Education on importance of STI and Blood Borne Virus (BBV) testing 
during pregnancy  

• Inform the prevention of congenital syphilis cases  

6.4 In line with PHE priorities and recommendations WCC clinics are leaders in 
collaborating to address chemsex. We have developed pathways and system 
with local providers to deliver innovative ways of working with this cohort. This 
includes joint working with the Club Drug Clinic to deliver care packages for both 
sexual health and their drug and alcohol use. We are piloting a ‘party pack’ to 
minimise the harms caused by chemsex practices. The packs will provide harm 
minimisation advice and reduce the transmission of BBVs and STIs. 

Commissioned services  
 
6.5 Within WCC we continue to strengthen local services on prevention, diagnosis, 

treatment and care of STIs with a focus on the population including young 
adults, Black Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) and MSM. To achieve this, we 
commission flexible services that address the needs of the changing needs of 
the population.  

Prevention services  
 

6.6 London HIV prevention programme  
WCC alongside most boroughs in London we contribute towards the London 
HIV prevention programme this is run by Lambeth Council. The programme 
delivers seasonal campaigns on the importance of testing of HIV, deliver HIV 
testing within venues such as nightclubs, gyms and saunas, and maintain a 
website where information of testing and HIV is consistent.  

 
6.7      Freedoms   
 Freedoms is a condom distribution scheme, there are two elements to the 

service: 
  

 Several services can order and distribute condoms. The coverage of these 
services include the voluntary sector, hostels, young people services and 
community centres whereby residents can receive free condoms.   

 Freedoms operate a shop within Mortimer Market a sexual health clinic in 
Camden, whereby those who work in the sex industry and sex workers where 
they can buy condoms and other safer sex material at cost.  

 
6.8      PrEP  
 Although PrEP is a prevention service that sits within the NHS, WCC do 

contribute to the costs of testing within the GUM services as detailed in section 
5. We also support, although not financially, the ‘we want PrEP now’ website 
that provides information on how to get private PrEP. 

 
6.9      Sexual and Relationship Education (SRE) within schools and colleges  

Page 17



 

 
 
 

 SRE is part of the curriculum although not always delivered consistently. For 
WCC schools and colleges we provide an offer of training for teachers and other 
front-line staff to deliver SRE to pupils.  

 
6.10    Community sexual health services  
 SASH are a consortium of specialist providers to deliver a range of interventions 

such as sexual health promotion campaigns, counselling, peer support, training 
of peers and volunteers, advocacy for people living with HIV and complimentary 
therapies.  

 
Clinical services  
 

6.11    E-services  
 The e-services are a London wide initiative. The service went live in April 2018. 

The service has been well received by resident’s, activity data can be found in 
appendix 3. The uptake of the e-service offer has continued to grow. The activity 
in the 3rd quarter has shown a decrease in positive/reactive rates, which may 
point to an increase in asymptomatic patients being tested, but this is still early 
into the service to make these assumptions. 

 
6.12    GUM services  
 The provider for WCC clinics is Chelsea and Westminster Foundation Trust with 

their sub-contractor Imperial Healthcare Trust, deliver non-complex and 
complex (levels 1,2 and 3) sexual health services.  The entry point to the service 
will be based on triage and risk assessment which determines the most 
appropriate service to meet individual need i.e. e-services or referrals to 
community services for non-clinical support.  

 
7 Summary  

7.1 Whilst sexual health continues to be a priority for PHE and WCC, the emerging 
trends are a reminder that we should not be complacent in the potential increase 
in rates of STIs amongst the population. The nature of the services being open 
access allows the commissioning of services to continue to serve both WCC 
residents but also the rest of London. To ensure services are readily available 
for all London residents cross charging arrangements are key to ensure there is 
limited financial risk to WCC.  

7.2 The services within WCC will continue to develop and respond to the needs of 
residents in reducing the rate of STIs and unplanned pregnancies. Although the 
data reflects an increase in STI diagnosis it should be caveated that the 
screening of STIs has also increased. This supports the configuration of 
services by providing good sexual health campaigns to reduce the transmission 
of STIs. It is also worth noting that the increase in screening activity means we 
can diagnose promptly and reduce the transmission which is in line with PHE 
recommendations and guidance.  

7.3 In order to address the emerging needs and manage the cost implications we 
will continue to target groups who have high risk factors, ensure there is capacity 
within services to meet the need of residents and work with the London sexual 

Page 18



 

 
 
 

health programme on a systematic approach to the development of sexual 
health services.   

7.4 A number of programmes are in development to address the needs of residents 
these include;  

 Development and implementation of a communication strategy aimed at 
WCC residents on sexual health promotion.  

 Improve the offer and uptake in the delivery of SRE in schools and colleges  

 Update the BBV strategy to ensure provision is meeting the needs of 
residents and to review the joint commissioning arrangements with WCC 
and the CCGs.   

 Scope and develop a primary care engagement strategy to ensure the 
access to contraception is readily available.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 
 
 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 -  Activity comparison in GUM clinics in WCC  

Jefferiss Wing Attendance* - 17/18 
*This is a count of activity so will count each service provided, thereforethose single visits where multiple activity is undertaken is 
counted for each activity 

 

Jefferiss Wing Attendance* - 18/19 YTD (April – December) 
*This is a count of activity so will count each service provided, thereforethose single visits where multiple activity is undertaken is 
counted for each activity 

 

 
 
 
 

 Screening 

Page 20



 

 
 
 

Dean Street Attendance* - 17/18 
*This is a count of activity so will count each service provided, thereforethose single visits where multiple activity is undertaken is 
counted for each activity 

 

 
 
 
Dean Street Attendance* - 18/19 YTD (April – December) 
*This is a count of activity so will count each service provided, thereforethose single visits where multiple activity is undertaken is 
counted for each activity 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 

 
 
 

 

Appendix 2 - WCC residents screening and diagnosis of STIs 

There was a 13% increase in overall diagnoses of new STI’s in Westminster between 
2013/14 and 2017/18. However the increases here were felt in Syphilis (74%), 
Gonorrhoea (51%) and Chlamydia (38%), with HIV (-41%) showing a decrease in this 
period. It is also worth pointing out that during this period screening increase by 80%. 
 

 

 
 
Appendix 3 WCC E- services activity 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Diagnoses 2018 % change 2013-2018 % change 2016/17-2017/18 

New STIs 4,556 13% 5% 

Syphilis 193 74% -3% 

Gonorrhoea 1,042 51% 36% 

Chlamydia 1,335 38% 4% 

Genital Herpes 302 -7% 4% 

Genital Warts 398 -12% -4% 

HIV 61 -41% -9% 

  2013 2018 % Change 

Total 
Screens 24,647 44,509 80.59% 

Page 22



 

 
 
 

 
Glossary of terms  
 
Term  Acronym  Definition  

 

Asymptomatic  
 

Asymptomatic If a patient believes they have been exposed 
to but experiences no symptoms. 

Blood Borne 
Virus  

BBV Blood-borne viruses (BBVs) include Hepatitis 
A, B and C and HIV. These viruses that people 
carry in their blood and can be spread from 
one person to another. 

Chemsex  Chemsex Chemsex is a term commonly used by gay 
men to describe the use of certain drugs in a 
sexual context Where risk taking behaviours 
are the norm 

Genitourinary 
Medicine clinics  

GUM Genitourinary Medicine (GUM) clinics are 
where the investigation and management of 
sexually transmitted infections and HIV take 
place. They are also known as sexual health 
clinics. 

Hepatitis A  Hep A Hepatitis A is a viral liver disease that can 
cause mild to severe illness. The hepatitis A 
virus (HAV) is transmitted through ingestion of 
contaminated food and water or through direct 
contact with an infectious person. Hepatitis A 
can be treated and vaccinated.  

Hepatitis B Hep B Hepatitis B is an infection of the liver caused 
by a virus that's spread through blood and 
body fluids. Hepatitis B can be treated and 
vaccinated.  

Hepatitis C Hep C Hepatitis C is a virus that can infect the liver. It 
is spread through blood and body fluids. 
Hepatitis C can be treated but there is no 
vaccination.  

Human Papilloma 
Virus  

HPV  Human papilloma virus (HPV) is the name for 
a group of viruses that affect your skin and the 
moist membranes lining your body. 
Vaccinations are available  

Long Acting 
Reversible 
Contraception  

LARC Long-acting reversible contraception (LARC) is 
the term used for birth control that helps 
prevent pregnancy after just one treatment. 
These include the coil and the implant which 
can be removed at any time.  

Pre-Exposure 
Prophylaxis 

PrEP  PrEP is a drug taken by HIV-negative people 
before sex that reduces the risk of acquiring 
HIV. 

PRIME at Dean 
Street  

PRIME  PRIME is a bespoke service within the Dean 
Street clinic, patients are offered the PRIME 
service based on their high-risk factors.  The 
PRIME offer includes fast track to screening, 
group support, weekly interventions to reverse 
their high-risk factors.  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

Family and People Services 
Policy & Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date: 
 

1st April 2019 

Classification: 
 

General Release  
 

Title: 
 

2018/19 Work Programme and Action Tracker 

Report of: 
 

Director of Policy, Performance & Communications 

Cabinet Member Portfolio 
 

Cabinet Member for Family Services and Public 
Health 
 

Wards Involved: 
 

All  
 

Policy Context: 
 

All 

Report Author and  
Contact Details: 
 

Aaron Hardy x 2894 
Ahardy1@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
1. Executive Summary 

1. This report asks the committee to suggest topics the 2019/20 work programme 
and note the suggested agenda for the committee’s next meeting. 

2. Key Matters for the Committee’s Consideration 

2.1 The Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the ongoing topic selection campaign  

 Note the suggested agenda for the committee’s next meeting  

 Suggest items for the 2019/20 work programme   

 Note the action tracker (appendix 1) 
 

3.  Topic selection 
 
3.1  The policy and scrutiny team is currently scoping topics for the 2019/20 work 

programme.  The long list of topics will be drawn together through a horizon 
scanning exercise, discussions with officers in the relevant services and 
suggestions from members.  The long list will be circulated to members of the 
committee for comments ahead of the first meeting of 2019/20. 

 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 
 
4.  North West London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(JHOSC) 
 
4.1  The North West London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee met 

on 12th January 2019.  The agenda included: 

 Congenital Heart Disease standards implementation in London 

 Update on Strategic Outline Case Part 1 (SOC 1) funding bid and Shaping 
a Healthier Future (SaHF) 

 Long-Term Plan and creating an integrated care system in North West 
London 

 Continuing Health Care and policy proposals 
 

The next meeting of the JHOSC will be in 2019/20.  Officers from across the 
member authorities are currently carrying out the annual review of the JHOSC. 

 
 
 

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the 
Background Papers please Aaron Hardy  

ahardy1@westminster.gov.uk  

 
APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 - Action Tracker 

Page 26

mailto:ahardy1@westminster.gov.uk


   

 

 

Family and People Services Policy and Scrutiny Committee Action Tracker 
 

ROUND FOUR 4 FEBRUARY 2019 
Agenda Item                Action Update 

Item 4: Cabinet Member 
Update 
 

Circulate director of public health 
report to the committee when it is 
published 

Completed 

 Circulate report on barriers to 
uptake of childhood vaccinations 
to the committee when it is 
available   

In progress 

Item 5: Childhood Obesity in 

Westminster 

Circulate details of water 
fountains in school scheme 

Completed 

Item 6: Local Children’s 

Safeguarding Board 

Circulate the final version of the 
LSCB annual report to the 
committee 

In progress 

 
 

 

ROUND THREE 3 DECEMBER 2018 
Agenda Item                Action Update 

Item 4: Cabinet Member 
Update 
 

Provide details of how people 
without internet access can get 
the SEND self-evaluation forms 

Completed 

 Include and update on youth 
violence public health approach in 
cabinet member report 

In progress 

 Include updates on agreements of 
areas of lead responsibility for 
Speech and Language Therapy in 
cabinet member report 

In progress 

Item 5: Safeguarding Board Share section 42 safeguarding 
process map with the committee 

Completed 

 Circulate to all councilors the 
contact details they should use to 
raise safeguarding issues 

Completed 

 Provide update on deprivation of 
liberty safeguards work in cabinet 
member update 

In progress 

Item 6: Direct 

Payments/Personal Budgets 

Circulate examples of payroll 
services to the committee 

Completed 

 

Page 27



   

 

 
 

ROUND TWO 15 OCTOBER 2018 
Agenda Item                Action Update 

Item 4: Cabinet Member 
Update 
 

Include updates on the e-based 
system for STIs in future cabinet 
member updates 

In progress 

 Contact Central London CCG 
about the discontinuation of the 
‘different voices’ service. 

Completed 

 Provide a briefing note on new 
contract for passenger transport 

Completed 

Item 5: Westminster 

HealthWatch Update 

Include direct payments/personal 
budgets on the committee’s work 
programme 

Completed 

Item 6: Care Home 

Improvement Programme 

(CHIP) - Older People's 

Nursing and Residential 

Homes 

Share reply about young woman 
at Forrester court with the 
committee 

Completed 

 Provide benchmarking briefing on 
care home ratings 

Completed 

 Organise briefing session on 
commissioning for the committee 

In Progress 

 Provide the committee with an 
update on the IBCF funding 
settlement once it’s known. 

In Progress 

 
 

ROUND ONE 18 JUNE 2018 
Agenda Item                Action Update 

Item 3: Minutes 
 

The Committee to receive a 
leaflet distributed by the CCG 
to GP Practices regarding new 
protocols around repeat 
prescriptions. 
 

In progress 

Item 4: Policy and Scrutiny 

Portfolio Overview 

A briefing to be provided on 
unaccompanied asylum-
seeking children within 
Westminster. To include 
information on how age 

Completed 

Page 28



   

 

assessments are undertaken. 
 

 Information to be circulated to 
the Committee providing 
updated details on the day 
services safe space provision 
provided at the Beethoven 
Centre. 
 

In progress 

Item 5: 
2018/19 Work Programme 
 

A list of NHS acronyms relating 
to the work of the Committee to 
be circulated to Members. 
 

Completed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Sexual Health in Westminster
	6 2018/19 Work Programme and Action Tracker
	FPS Action Tracker


